
CITYOF MENDOTA

JESUS MENDOZA
Chairperson

PAUL OCHOA
Vice-Chairperson

ALBERT ESCOBEDO

ANTONIO PIZANO

KEVIN ROMERO

JESSICA SANCHEZ

JOSUE URIAS

ooCantaloupe Center Of The World"

AGENDA
REGREATION COMMISSION

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

643 QUINCE STREET
September 2,2021

12.00 PM

CRISTIAN GONZ ALEZ
City Manager

Publ ic Works/Planning Director

CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA
City Clerk

The Mendota Recreation Commission welcomes you to its meetings. Notice is hereby given that the commission
may discuss and/or take action on any or all of the items listed on this agenda. PIease turn your cell phones on
vibrate/off while in the council chambers.
Any public writings distributed by the City of Mendota to at least a majority of the Recreation Commission regarding
any item on this regular meeting agenda will be made available at the front counter at City Hall located at Bl3
Quince Street Mendota, CA 93640, during normal business hours, 8 AM - 5 PM.

ln compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring special assistance to participate at this
meeting please contact the City Clerk at (559) 655-3291. Notification of at least forty-eight hours prior to the meeting
will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting.

lf you would like to participate at this meeting via Zoom, please use the following information:
Dial-in number: 1(569) 9006833 Meeting lD: 950 1132 4690 Password: 542668
httos://zoom. us/j/9601 1 324690?owd=ZVUvVUVDd0FjL3FlQ3ZqejJZK3RkQT09

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

FLAG SALUTE

FINALIZE THE AGENDA

1. Adjustments to Agenda

2. Adoption of final Agenda

CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS
At this time members of the public may address the Recreation Commission on matters not listed on the agenda.
Please limit your comments to THREE (3) MINUTES. Please give the completed form to City Clerk prior to the start
of the meeting. All speakers shall observe proper decorum. The Mendota Municipal Code prohibits the use of
boisterous, slanderous, or profane language. All speakers must step to the podium, state their names and
addresses for the record. Please watch the time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING READING

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting of August 5,2021.

2. Notice of waiving of the reading of al! resolutions introduced and/or adopted
under this agenda.

Recreation Commission Agenda 1 September 2,2021

643 0uince Street Mendota, Calilornia 93640

Telephone: (559) 655-3291 Fresno Line: (559) 266-6456 Fax: (559) 655-4064

TDD/[TY 866-735-2919 (English) TDD/ITY 866-833-4703 (Spanish)

ci.mendota.ca.us

The City ol Mendota is an equal opportunity provider and employer



1

BUSINESS

Commission discussion and consideration of a facility use application submitted
by Westside Youth, lnc. for the use of the baseball fields.

a. Receive report from City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia
b. lnquiries from Commission to staff
c. Chairperson Mendoza opens floor to receive any comment from the

public
d. Commission takes action as appropiate

2. Commission discussion and consideration of creating a facility use policy

a. Receive report from Ci$ Clerk Cabrera-Garcia
b. lnquiries from Commission to staff
c. Chairperson Mendoza opens floor to receive any comment from the

public
d. Commission provides direction to staff on how to proceed

STAFF REPORTS AND I NFORMATIONAL ITEMS

RECREATION COMMISSIONER REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

l, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby declare that the
foregoing agenda for the City of Mendota Recreation Commission Regular Meeting of
Thursday, September 2,2021 was posted on the outside bulletin board located at City
Hall, 643 Quince Street on Monday, August 30,2021at 12:00 p.m

Celeste C

Recreation Commission Agenda 2 September 2,2021



 

Recreation Commission Meeting          1    August 5, 2021 

 
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

REGULAR RECREATION COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

 
Regular Meeting     Thursday, August 5, 2021  12:00 p.m. 

 
Meeting called to order by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia at 12:03 p.m.  
  
Roll Call 
 
Commissioners Present:  Vice-Chairperson Paul Ochoa, Commissioners 

Antonio Pizano, Kevin Romero, and Josue Urias  
 
Commissioners Absent:    Chairperson Jesus Mendoza and Commissioners 

Albert Escobedo and Jessica Sanchez 
 
Flag Salute led by Commissioner Romero 
 
FINALIZE THE AGENDA 
 
1. Adjustments to Agenda. 

 
2. Adoption of final Agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Pizano to adopt the agenda, seconded by 
Commissioner Urias; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Escobedo, Mendoza, and 
Sanchez). 
 
CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
 
None offered. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING READING  
 
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting of June 3, 2021. 
 
2. Notice of waiving the reading of all resolutions introduced and/or adopted under 

this agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Romero to approve items 1 and 2, seconded by  
Commissioner Pizano; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Escobedo, Mendoza,  
and Sanchez). 
 
 

 



 

Recreation Commission Meeting          2    August 5, 2021 

BUSINESS 
 
1. Commission discussion and consideration of Resolution No. RC 21-02, 

forwarding a recommendation to the City Council to adopt the updated fee 
schedule for the baseball and soccer fields. 

 
City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia introduced the item and summarized the report. 
 
Discussion was held on the item. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Pizano to adopt Resolution No. RC 21-02,  
seconded by Commissioner Romero; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent:  
Escobedo, Mendoza, and Sanchez). 
 
2. Commission discussion and consideration of creating a facility use policy. 
 
City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia introduced the item and summarized the report. 
 
Discussion was held on the item. 
 
Commission consensus was reached to direct staff to bring back a similar policy that the 
City of Kerman has for discussion at a future meeting. 
 
3.        Commission discussion and consideration of a facility use application submitted  
 by Jose Cruz for the use of the Danny Trejo Soccer Field. 
 
City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia introduced the item and summarized the report. 
 
Discussion was held on the item. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Pizano to approve the facility use application  
submitted by Jose Cruz, with conditions, seconded by Commissioner Romero; 
unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Escobedo, Mendoza, and Sanchez). 
 
STAFF REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia reported on the upcoming Mendota Community Corporation’s 
Golf Tournament. 
 
Discussion was held on the scheduling of the Officials vs. Staff charitable softball game 
and the upcoming dog vaccination clinic. 
 
RECREATION COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioner Romero provided an update on youth sports. 
 



 

Recreation Commission Meeting          3    August 5, 2021 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
At the hour of 12:52 p.m., with no more business to be brought before the Commission, 
a motion for adjournment was made by Commissioner Romero, with a second by 
Commissioner Pizano; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Escobedo, Mendoza, 
and Sanchez). 
 
_______________________________   
Paul Ochoa, Vice Chairperson     
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
 

 



1 

 

AGENDA IT EM – ST AFF REPORT  

TO: RECREATION COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON AND COMMISSIONERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA:  CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF THE FACILITY USE APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY WESTSIDE 
YOUTH, INC. 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 2, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________  

ISSUE 
Shall the Recreation Commission discuss and consider the facility use application submitted by 
Westside Youth, Inc. for the use of the baseball fields? 
 
BACKGROUND 
On August 19th, the City of Mendota (“City”) received the attached application from Westside 
Youth, Inc. (“WSY”) requesting use of baseball fields (including restrooms and lights) for an 
event that will include a haunted house, maze, bounce house, and train. The requested dates were 
October 21- 23, 29, and 30, 2021 from 3pm-11pm. The organization proposes an event 
admission fee of $1 with proceeds benefitting the organization. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The dates requested by WSY do not conflict with any previously approved facility use permits. It 
is the prerogative of the Commission to approve or deny the application and implement 
conditions of approval. Should the application be approved by the Commission, staff 
recommends that the following be included as the conditions of approval (as well as any other 
conditions that the Commission so chooses): 
 

• Applicant will provide current Proof of Liability Insurance 
• The key to the facilities will be provided to the applicant on the dates specified by 

staff and the organization will need to complete the key check out form 
• Applicant will utilize the facilities only on the times and days that have been 

approved  
• The applicant must notify the City two (2) days in advanced if the facility will not 

be occupied 
• Applicant will provide the City with any updates to its schedule 
• Applicant will pay the necessary fees and deposits before beginning use of the 

field 
• Applicant will maintain the facilities and other property based on their use and 

immediately report any observed problems, whether or not caused directly by 
their use, to City Hall 

• Applicant understands and accepts that the new baseball field has limited lighting 
during the approved dates 



2 

 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None at this time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Commission discuss and consider the facility use application 
submitted by Westside Youth, Inc for the use of the baseball fields. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Attachment “A” – Facility Use Application Submitted By WSY 
 
 



lf,II

+II.tI

s 19 21 10:50a p.1

Ait'
7 a i,0?l fo', C*t.n {e C-

altqtu
CITY OF IflENDOTA

FACILITY USE APPLICATION

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR TTEMS FOR WHICH TNFORMATIOII IS REQUESTED. PRIIIT ALL ANSWERS
EXCEPT IHE SIGNATURE.

FoR use oF ALL oR st BsrANTtAtLy ALL oF THE RoJAs-plERcE eARK prcNrc ARBI AIID BAND'TAND, oR MEND'TA
POOL PA'RK BAilDSTAND, VEIERANS PARI! APPUCAT{TS MUST APPEAR BEFORE THE CnY COUI{CIL FOR AppROVAL

OFTHE PERMIT.

Ngre: SecEoN 12.20.050 Applrcmous FoR ExcLUsrvE usE sr{Arl BE FnED wrrH THE crry cLERK DURTNc THE
M0NTH op Feanulnv ANNUALLY AND sHALL BE sET FoR coNsrDERATroN By rHE ory couNcrL AT rrs FrRST
MEETHG IN llARcH At{NuALtY. Apptlc.ulotts FoR ExcLUsrvE usE sHALL BE FTLED Nor LESs rHA}t rwEury or.E(21) lon iIoRE IHAN oNE HUNDRED FtFTy (150) onvs pRroR ro rHE usE oF THE FAcrLrTy. pRoMorERs SHALL
REQUEST A1'l AGREEMEIUT wrH THE crry BESIDES THE AppltcATroli.

NoIE secrtou 12-20.{10: Appucenr musr pRovtDe rur cry wtrH cERTrFrcATEs oF rr{suRANcE spEcrFyrNc
THE CITY OF ilIENDOTAAS NAIXED ]NSURED EVIDENCNG UABILITY AND PROPERTY DAUAGE LIMTTS WTH A COMBINED
STNGLE LrurroF NorLESsrHAx oNE MrLLror{ DoLrARs (sl,000,000}.

COMPLETED APPUCATION.

PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWNG CITY OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED.
PROOF OF TIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACTLITY USE
DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DEPARTI,ENT.
ograruro sEcuRrryAS REQuTRED gv MeNoore polrce DEpARTMENT
ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF PERMITTEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT.
NOISE PERMIT, IF APPLICABLE

DEPoSIT, UsE FEE, AND KEY DEPoSIT RETURNED To APPLICANT

I

I

l
l
l
I

I
1

t

I
t

t

I
t
I
I

1 trry 655 ' qDbT



Aus 19 21 10:50a

1. This application is for the use of the fol lowing facility:

2. The organization, individuat, business or entity applying for the use permit:

p,2

1
(

{J^ k
The contact percon on.behalf of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which use permit isrequested together with a[ of the foilowing informationi

3.

6.

Nnme:

Aooness (STREET AND

TeuepHoNE No,

Gr".

Ed,.l"c-tZ\LT\ Z-3
3D+.- -t t4.

5. Please describe the exact park area or areas requested for Exctusiye Use. (List below and circle the areaon the attached map).

I y1^S -\l tds\\ f

Purpose or functlon for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for exclusive use. Note:Section 12.20,090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as rlquired.

€t,^. (-t t-
Number of persons expected to attend the function or event.

will alcohotic beverages be sold? Yes -. -- *o.)L note: if yes, you must apply for and receive aseparate permit from the state department ol alcoh6i-5-everage c6ntrll, if so, liquoi ri.rir1v i*uiance isrequired to be purchased lhlttv (30) days. in advance b1 tlr'e applicant. itre rre.no county sheriff,sdepa(ment must be contacted iegarding ihis application. it . citvli llr"roota parrs are tobacco free andalcohol free.

Has a promoter been.contracted to prele$, produce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity orentertainment durlng the event? Yes- ttg<1, Note: section 12.20.i10, if yes, the p*otri L'requlreu toprovide certificate of lnsurance evidencing 
lLui.litv and proferty damage'limits initt i .oruin.a ,ffit, tiritof not less than $1,000,000 with a deductible of nbr moie t'han $500, .ina strart speclty the city of Mendotaand applicant as named insured.

,r/l+

lf a promoter will present, producg or othenvise be involved in the event, activity or entertainrnent, state
the name, address and telephone number of the promoter and describe his/he/it participaii* in tn,

/vlL 2

\r\

8.

I

10.

I

,

7.



Aus 19 21 10:50a p.3

11.

event Note: Section 5.08.030 Amusement Park Rr:des and Attractions; Section s.0g.300 Musical andTheatrical sho,c. The promoter is required to obtain 
" 

trrrino, license.

NamE:

AoonEss:

Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and vehicles to be used, thenature and times of use of. such equipment, and the nature ind'tiire of use of any amptified soundequipment. Please keep in mind that anything not rnention.A U.U* will not Ue altoweA.

will concession stand(s) be used? _ yes f No. Note: for baseball diamond concession,
$f50.00 fee, per league, no exemptioit

Will there be an admlssions gllrgt to the event? lf so, state the exact amount of each ticketlLra. State the reason lor imposing thisldmbsion charge

willthere be a live band at this function?- y.s Y no (see artached municipalcode regarding noise ordinance)

,T

12.

13.

14.

15, state the names and addresses of all persons or groups which will receive any of the proceeds from thisevent, how those proceeds will be divided among such persons or groups.\,1

16.

17. [,

If this permit application is for all or substantially all of the park area, or all or substantially all of the picnicand bandstand are, slalg th.eov-erriding publicinterest or'speciat circumstances which justify excludingresidents of the city of Mendota from using their public park facilities.

2/ read the Mendota Mun icipal Code Chapter 12.20 re: parkpermits (attached). I understand all of the requirements for conducting an event or activity in the use of thePark or any City facility. I agree on behalf of myself and
(name of applicantl, the organization on whose hehalf thisapplication is made, to indemnify, defend and hold the city of lfrendota harrnless, from and agalnst any andall claims, actions, su its, and proceedings for money damages or other relief for personal injury, propertydamage or other losses resulting from or caused by the activity or event for which this permit is issued.The keys to any facility or electrical panel will not be issued until this document is signed by the permittee

requesti ng a facility and/or consenuhold harrnless agreements ane submitted to city staff and proof ofinsurance is provided and all fues and deposits are paid.

3

Signature of Permitee rl t 7l

including
I Q- trt lj-.r



Aus 19 21 10:50a p.4

t, declare I have read and understand the foregoing application and all
attachments thereto. I further declare that I will abide by all City, State, County and Federal laws at said event.

Dated:

Signature of Permitee

I

C ITY TVIANAGER AP PROVAL

THIS APPLICATION IS APPBOVED / NT.IEGTED FOR USE OF THE ON Tne
FoLLoWING coNDlrloNs oFAPPRoVAL SHALLAPPLY, MAy rNcLUDe Pouce Depanruenr REQUIREIUENTS.

CIW IUIANAGER: DATE:_
**#**********r*h****t******t*:k*****ik*****l*****i******i***r**t******:F***tr*t*********rr****r*r***{*a*H*:tH

SECURIW REQUIREMENT OR CONDITIoNS es peR Gny or MeuoorA Pouce DEPARTilIENT:

Por-lce DEPT: DATE:

4



Aug 19 21 10:50a p.5

-
ACORD^l---

wESWOU{1

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Stratton Asencv
1380 Leadlitt fivd
Sulte 210
Roseville, CA 9566I

PRODUCER

INSURED

Westside Youth, lnc
Attn: Dino Perez
1709 Seventfi Struet
Mendota, CA 93G{0

I
DATE [riltJtfDDtYYYa)

456.5365 703{935

GERTIF]GATE ONLY
TIVELY NEGATIVELY

REPRESENTATIVE

THlS ts ISSUED AS TUIATTERA OF INFORTTATION CONFAND NOERS UPONRIGHTS THE CERTIFICA ET HOLD ER. THISDOESCERTIFIGATE NOT AFFIRMA OR A EXTENDMEND, ALOR THETER AFFORDEDCOVERI\GE BY THE POLICIESBELOW. THIS CERTIFTCA OFTE RANCEINSU DOES NOT ACONSTTTUTE BETWEENCONTRACT THE ISSUING AUTHORIZEDTNSURER(S),POR RODU TI{EANDCER, HOLDER.CERTIF!CATE

must have AD DITIONAL INSURED beor endorced.provlslone
ceftain endorssment.an Arequire statement onmay

IMPORTANT: rf the certlficate holder an*s ADDITIONAL INSURED, thelf TIONSUBROGA IS WAIVED, to terrnsths and conditions of thethis not rconfe to the In lieu

com

NAIC #

1669t

THIS IS TO CERTIFY TI-I,AT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMEDINDICATED, NOTWTHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMEHT IMTH RESPECT TO \ tlilcH THrsCERTIFICATE MAY BE }SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED ETT THE POLIGIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMSEXCLUSIONS CONDITIONS LIMITS MAY HAVE BEEN REDU CED BY

\ Prof Liability

ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

OF INSURANCE POI.JCY NUIIBER POLICY EFF
IMM/DDIYY-YYI Lnnfis

COiil TNERCiAL G ENERAL UABIUTY

xCTAIMS+{ADE OCCUR

x

PER:

LOC

APPLIESr
x lro"r, tozo,oz 512t2021 9212022

s

EODILY INJURY (Per carsonl s

BODILY INJURY fPer aecidentl $

_t

AUTOI'OBILE LTAEUTY

AI.JY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS Ot'[Y
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

Hgflg't$fttv

{
s

UMBRELI-A LTAB

ETCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLqIMS.MADE
E

DED I nerrxroN $ i_
5

$

S

ffi N/A

1020202 512n021

€

5t2/2022
5t2t2022

Each Llrnit
Each Act, E&O

1,000,000

1,000,000

Insured. Evldence of insurance aa

CIty of Mendota
643 Quinst SL
ftrlendota, CA 93640

o tggg-2015 ACORD
The AcoRD name and logo are registered rnarks of AcoRD

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORETHE HPIRATION DATE _T-EEREOF, HOTICE W]LL BE mLMERED lNACCORDANCE WITH THE POUGY PROVISIO]Si._ -

,i)*"5 AtJ
AU TH ORIZED REPRESEf.I TAIIVE

;oRD 2E 12016/03) GORPORATION. AII rights resewed.

r5*

ryects Abuse & lUolestaflon and professlonsl Pollcy form CG 89



1 

 

AGENDA IT EM – ST AFF REPORT  

TO: RECREATION COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON AND COMMISSIONERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA:  CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CREATION OF A FACILITY USE POLICY 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 2, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________  

ISSUE 
Shall the Recreation Commission discuss and consider directing staff to create a facility use 
policy? 
 
BACKGROUND 
At its last regular meeting, the Commission discussed the possibility of creating a facility use 
policy for the City of Mendota (“City”) and directed staff to bring back the policy from the City 
of Kerman for review and discussion. 
 
ANALYSIS 
It is the prerogative of the Commission to decide whether to direct staff to draft a facility use 
policy and what elements that policy addresses. The City of Kerman’s Athletic Field Use and 
Allocation Policy is attached to this report for the Commission’s review. That policy essentially 
serves as a guidelines for establishing youth/adult sports field allocations, requirements, 
applications and fees. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None at this time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Commission discuss and consider directing staff to create a facility 
use policy. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Attachment “A” – City of Kerman’s Athletic Field Use and Allocation Policy 
 
 



 
 

 

 

 

RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

Athletic Field Use and Allocation Policy 

 

 
Guideline for establishing youth/adult sports field allocations,  

requirements, applications and fees 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
Table of Contents 
 
Introduction ..……………………………………………………………………………………….………..…… 2 
Mission Statement …………………………………………………………………………………………..... 2 
Statement of Philosophy ………………………………………………………………………….………. 3 
Definition of Terms …………………………………………………………………………………………..… 3 
 Resident Status ………..………………………………………………………………………... 3 
 Youth Status ………………………………………………………………………………….……...…. 3 
 Non-Profit Status ……………………………………………………………..…………………... 3 
 Basic Services ………………………………………………………………………….…………………. 4 
 Special Services ………………………………………………………………………………….. 4 
Process for Obtaining Permits ………………………………………………………………………………….. 4 
Allocation Process …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 5 
Allocation Procedure Formula …………………………………………………………………………………… 6 
Tournaments ………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 7 
Recovery Policy …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 7 
Priority Group Classifications ………………………………………………………………………………..… 7 
Allocation/Field Rental Fees …………………………………………………………………………………… 8 
Other Fees ……………………………………………………………………………………………………..… 8 
Fee Payment/Refunds/Waivers ………………………………………………………………………… 8 
Deposits ……………………………………………………………………………………………………..… 9 
Liability Insurance Requirements ………………………………………………………………………… 9 
Restrooms ……………………………………………………………………………………………………..… 9 
Lights ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 9 
Field Rules & Regulations ………………………………………………………………………………….. 10 
 Conditions of Use ………………………………………………………………………………….. 12 
 Turf Preservation ………………………………………………………………………………….. 12 
 Athletic Field Lining/Marking ……………………………………………………………………….. 12 
 Field Modifications ………………………………………………………………………………….. 13 
 Inclement Weather Policy ……………………………………………………………………….. 13 
Maintenance Issues …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 14 
Permit Cancellation …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 15 
Notice of Non-Use of Field ………………………………………………………………………………….. 15 
Policy for Permitted Use of Athletic Fields Violations ………………………………………………….. 15 
Other Information …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 15 
 Tent and Canopy Requirements …………………………………………………………….. 15 
 Concessions …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 16 
 Snack Bar and Barbeque Use ……………………………………………………………………….. 16 
 Vendors/Concessionaires ……………………………………………………………………..… 16 
 Additional Supervision ………………………………………………………………………………….. 16 
 Banners/Signage/Advertising ……………………………………………………………………….. 17 
 Traffic and Parking ………………………………………………………………………………….. 17 
Appeals Process …………………………………………………………………………………………….. 18 
Forms ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 19 

 
 

 
 
1 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
Introduction 
 
The City of Kerman Recreation and Community Services Department is dedicated to fostering 
healthy lifestyles and helping the community thrive.  The City recognizes that sports are a 
fundamental component of this goal and that field availability is necessary to sports 
organizations.  As such, the Recreation and Community Services Department coordinates and 
issues permits for the use of City and School District athletic fields for general public use for 
cultural, social, and recreational activities/programs.  The Recreation and Community Services 
Department works cooperatively through Joint Use Agreements with the Kerman Unified School 
District (when school is not in session) to provide athletic fields, gyms, and pools to local 
organizations. 
 
The purpose of this policy is to outline the City and School Districts allocation priority procedure 
and rental policies for the permitted use of athletic fields in the City of Kerman.  The City has 
experienced growth in youth/adult sports with both new sports organizations and emerging 
sports.  This growth is anticipated to continue.  The Recreation and Community Services 
Department has already experienced an increased demand for the use of City and School 
District athletic fields, and finds it necessary to emphasize sharing in the use of all athletic fields 
among our present and future sports organizations. 
 
This policy has been established to assure that the fields are utilized for recreational, cultural, 
educational, social and community service functions that meet the needs of the community, as 
well as, set clear policies, procedures, regulations and rental fees for such uses.  This policy 
addresses youth/adult sports specifically and excludes picnic rentals, Kerman Community/Teen 
Center, Kerman Senior Center, and Scout Hut rentals. 
 
Neighborhood and city-wide community parks and (school district) schools, gyms and pools that 
have athletic space fields space designated in their design are available for use.  Due to the 
limited number of fields and facilities available, the Recreation and Community Services 
Department, Recreation Commission and the City Council have established criteria for priority 
use.  The Recreation and Community Services Department will give priority to Kerman residents 
and will monitor proper use of allocations and permits. 
 
Recognizing that this increased demand on fields creates an increased strain on the City’s 
financial resources, it is possible that the City may charge in order to recover public costs to 
operate, maintain, repair, improve, supervise and administer the use of schools, parks, and 
athletic fields/facilities. 
 
 

Mission Statement 
 
The mission of the Kerman Community Services Department is to improve the quality of life of 
the Kerman community by providing exceptional programs, facilities and services at a good 
value to our taxpayers and customers and preserving and protecting our City’s natural 
resources. 
 
 

 
 
2 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
Statement of Philosophy 
 
The City of Kerman is dedicated to creating partnerships with local youth/adult sports 
organizations to ensure there is ample opportunity to participate in athletics at various ability 
levels.  Our primary role in these partnerships is to provide athletic opportunities and to make 
certain our fields remain safe and of high quality.  The allocation/permitting process provides an 
organization the exclusive use of a field to the exclusion of all others.  The objective of this 
policy is to create a clear/written allocation policy and procedures that: 

 Fairly distribute available fields 
 Maximize playing time 
 Incorporate “turf recovery period” to maintain safe, quality fields 
 Communicate financial issues and recovery period 
 Outline field use regulations 

The underlying principle of financing public park and recreation facilities is for public use 
enjoyment and to ensure that all citizens have equal opportunity and choice of participation.  
Since the demand is greater than the tax revenues available for support, it is necessary to 
charge fees for selected fields, particularly in instances where the field is utilized by individuals 
or groups for personal benefit. 
 
The Recreation and Community Services Department must utilize multiple funding sources.  
Fees and charges provide only one source of financing for the Recreation and Community 
Services Department’s mission to provide public facilities, parks and open space for all citizens. 
 
 

Definition of Terms  

 
Resident Status 
Resident status is defined as groups or organizations comprised of at least 90% Kerman 
residents as established by KUSD boundaries.  Team rosters and/or individual participant photo 
ID may be required by City staff to verify residency status. 
 
Youth Status 
Youth status is defined as persons 19 years of age or under. 
 
Non-Profit Status 
To qualify as a Non-Profit user, the organization must meet all criteria as identified by the 
Internal Revenue Service.  The organization must be registered as a not-for-profit corporation 
by the State of California.  If the organization is not registered with the State, they must have a 
constitution, set of bylaws or mission statement which clearly states the objectives of the 
organization are of a non-profit, non-commercial nature.  Visit www.irs.gov for additional 
information of non-profit status.  The organization must be comprised of volunteers, 90% of 
which must be City of Kerman residents. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
3 

http://www.irs.gov/


City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Basic Services 
Basic services are defined as the maintenance of safe, clean, attractive parks and buildings and 
the provision of recreation service for the general public.  Basic Services preserve and promote 
physical and mental well being and will continue to be supported by taxpayer resources. 
 
 Examples of basic service 

 Free play in playgrounds 
 Use of City parks or open space for passive use 
 General park and recreation administration services 
 Park and recreation facility development 

 
Examples of basic facilities 
 Unscheduled, unlighted, unmarked baseball/softball/soccer/utility/football fields 
 Unscheduled outdoor basketball facilities 
 Unscheduled tennis courts 
 Unreserved picnic tables and shelters 
 Parks and playgrounds 
 Parking lots for general facility use 
 Trails, paths, and restrooms 
 Open Space 

 
Special Services 
Special services are those where revenues are necessary to support continued use.  By this 
definition, individuals can expect to pay a fee for the privilege of using the fields and facilities to 
the exclusion of others and without interference. 
 
 Examples of special fields/facilities/services 

 Schedules/reserved use of indoor facilities (gyms, meeting rooms, courts, etc.) 
 Scheduled use of tennis courts 
 Lighted baseball/softball/soccer/utility/football fields 
 Golf courses 
 Maintenance necessary for sports programs (Field striping, Infield drag, etc.) 
 Swimming pools with lifeguards 
 Outdoor theater facilities 
 Use of parks for special events 

 Reserved picnic tables and shelters 
 
 

Process for Obtaining Permits 
 
Allocation permits are issued through a semi-annual process.  Allocation permits are issued 
after a request has been presented, all required documents are submitted, fees are paid, 
insurance requirements are met, and approval has been granted.  A request does not constitute 
approval.  Game and practice schedules may be required for verification and to ensure that 
fields are being used as designated.  Allocation permits are issued to priority groups 1 & 2 as 
identified under priority group classifications. 

 
 
 
 
4 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Field Permits are required for any organized sport associated with a team, league or school.  
Non-allocated groups who wish to use an athletic field must complete the appropriate 
application.  The City has exclusive discretion scheduling City and School District fields.  Field 
permits are issued to priority groups A, B and C as identified under priority group classifications.  
An application must be submitted a minimum of 10 working days prior to the requested use 
date.  Proof of insurance must be submitted prior to a permit being issued.  Payment is due in 
full at the time the permit is issued.  Submission of an application does not constitute approval. 
 
 

Allocation Process 
 
Allocation of fields will follow the guidelines of this document.  Fields will be allocated and 
permitted semi-annually as sustainability allows.  These allocations are not intended to interrupt 
the field assignments for teams and/or organizations during the course of a season that has 
already started. 
 
Sport Season Priority 

 Traditional sports seasons have priority use over select/shoulder seasons. 
 Spring sports (baseball, softball) have priority use March 1 – July 1. 
 Fall sports (soccer, football) have priority use August 1 – December 15. 
 Shoulder season for baseball/softball include July 1 – August 1 for post season 

tournament practice or games 

 Shoulder season for soccer includes March 1 – August 1 for pre-season select practices. 
 The City reserves the right to impose fees for the shoulder season (field availability is 

extremely limited). 

 January and February are turf-recovery periods, during which time only limited field use 
will occur. 

 
Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 
Turf Recovery 

Period – Limited 
Field Use 

(Rotary Park – 
Ends 02/01) 

 

Spring Sport Priority Use (baseball, 
softball) 

BB/SB 
shoulder & 
post season 

 Winter Baseball Turf Recovery 
(Rotary Park – 
Begins 12/1) 

Soccer shoulder season for pre-season & select 
practices (Through 8/1) 

Fall Sport Priority Use  
(soccer, football) 

Begins 8/1 – Ends 12/15 

 
The City reserves the right to set aside additional time during the year for turf recovery, improvement and maintenance 
 

Additional Considerations 

 Fields will be allocated by priority use 
 Fields will be allocated to teams/organizations based on the percentage of verifiable 

total Kerman residents in relation to all teams in that priority group. 
 The City will attempt to accommodate emerging sports that fall within the Group 2 

category. 

 Verification of Kerman residency will be established by providing such documentation 
requested by the City including team rosters, player addresses, picture ID, utility bill, 
etc. 
 
 
 
 
 

5 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 With regards to sports that play year round (with a primary and off-season play), the 
primary season of each sport will determine whether the field is considered a 
baseball/softball or a soccer/utility field on multiple-use sites. 

 Allocation requests during off-season play will be reviewed after allocations are granted 
for the primary season sports.  Fees may be charged for allocations granted of off-
season play. 

 Teams and organizations may be required to provide schedules to show that all of the 
allocated fields are being utilized.  If an allocated field(s) is not utilized by the 
designated organization/teams a total of three times during a season/or-reserved period 
of use, the field(s) will be reassigned.  Teams/organizations will be notified by City staff 
when it has been determined a field(s) is not being used (and prior to reassignment). 

 The City reserves the right to cancel an allocation to accommodate the needs of any City 
sponsored/co-sponsored tournaments and/or special events. 

 A field use permit (authorizing use of City or School District fields) will be issued after all 
requirements have been met and payment has been received.  A request for field use 
does not constitute approval. 

 All field users must have a copy of their permit available for inspection by City staff 
and/or police. 

 Requests for additional use, programs or facilities not covered by the Athletic Field Use 
and Allocation Policy should be addressed in writing to the City. 

 

 
Allocation Procedure Formula 
 
Fields will be allocated to organizations/teams based on the percentage of verifiable total 
Kerman resident participants in relation to all team in that priority group.  The total number of 
organization participants that are City of Kerman residents will be divided by the minimum 
roster size for each sport to determine the total number of teams in each organization. 
 
Minimum Roster Sizes 
 
Soccer:  14 (regulation) or 10 (U10 & Below) Baseball/Softball: 12 
 
An example of this would be: 
 
Baseball Group A has 360 Kerman residents 
360 divided by 12 equals 30 teams 
 
Baseball Group B has 240 Kerman residents 
240 divided by 12 equals 20 teams 
 
30 plus 20 equals 50 teams 
30 divided by 50 equals 60.00% of allocation for Group A 
20 divided by 50 equals 40.00% of allocation for Group B 

 
 
 
 
 
 
6 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Tournaments 
 
Tournaments applicants must complete a field use request at least 90 calendar days in advance.  
Requests received less than 45 calendar days in advance will be granted as conditions allow.  
Tournament clean-up deposits will be refunded provided there is no damage or defacement to 
the park amenities, including equipment, grass, and foliage.  In the event the damage costs 
exceed the amount of the deposit, the remainder of the charges will be billed to the applicant 
(amount to be determined by the City of Kerman). 
 
 

Recovery Policy 
 
As the City continues to grow and facilities age, the Recreation and Community Services 
Department must develop a financial system to support our community investment while 
maintaining the high level of service we currently provide.  The City will continue to provide 
basic services funded entirely by general taxpayers; however, those benefiting from special 
services (which create additional City expenses) must contribute financially.  The City 
acknowledges that the community benefits when youth/adults are engaged in sports activities.   
The recovery policy is intended for the participants to supplement, rather that supplant the  
investment of the general taxpayers.  The recovery policy strives to: 
 

 Amortize the capital investment and cover maintenance/operational costs of a field. 
 Pay for and augment operation/maintenance costs for a field where tax appropriations 

support the basic service. 

 Control use of the field. 
 Assess a portion of the costs of the field to users who may not be tax supporters. 
 Enable the Department to provide fields for which funds might not otherwise be 

available. 
 
The primary purpose of this policy statement is to develop an understanding that the pricing of 
services is a conscious procedure that requires continual investigation and review by 
Department staff. 
 

 
Priority Group Classifications 
 
Priority use of fields will be allocated as follows: 
 
Group 1: City sponsored or co-sponsored events.  City youth/adult athletic programs 

and/or leagues.  Kerman Unified School District schools have priority at school 
sites prior to 6 pm on weekdays when school is in session (per our JUA) 

 
Group 2: Non-profit or not-for-profit youth organizations (i.e. KGSL, Kerman Cal Ripken, 

KYSL, and KYF).  Must have at least 90% residents and/or minimum of 200 
Kerman resident participants.  Conduct open registration regardless of skill level.  
Maintain a national/state affiliation.  Follow National Alliance of Youth Sports 
(NAYS) or equivalent program as defined by the Department.  Operate through 
volunteer coaches and administrators.  Provide an “everyone plays” philosophy. 

 
7 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Group 3: Youth organizations (i.e. Travel Teams) or private events with 51%-90% Kerman 
residency and/or less than 200 Kerman resident participants. 

 
Group 4: Youth organizations (i.e. Travel Teams) or private events with under 51% 

Kerman residency and/or less than 200 Kerman resident participants. 
 
Group 5: General youth and adult users.  For profit organizations, tournaments, clinics 

and/or camps with individual or team participation fees. 

 
 
Allocations/Field Rental Fees (Based on Current Fee Schedule, Subject to change 

based on results of Community Survey) 
 
The following are “in season” rates: 
 

Allocations/Field Rentals 

Group 1 Group 2 
(KGSL/KCRB/KYSL) 

Group 3 Group 4 Group 5 

Built into 
program fees 

Fees waived during 
league play (Priority 
Use Periods) 

$10.00 per hour / per 
field for lights 

$15.00 per hour / per 
field for lights 

$75 per day / per field 
plus $15.00 per hour / 
per field for lights 

 
Tournament & camp rates may differ where teams pay a fee to play and admission is charged. 
 
 

Other Fees  
 
Field Rental Rates: 
Field Use     $75 per field / per day (standard) 
Lights      $15 per field / per hour (standard) 
Concession Stand    $45 per day (standard) 
 
Deposits: 
Field Rental Deposit    $100 per event 
Key Deposit     $50 per key issued 
Scoreboard Controller Deposit  $375.00 - Coleman Field 
      TBD – Rotary Park 

 
 

Fee Payment/Refunds/Waiver 
 
Payment 
Permits will not be issued until all rental and deposit fees are received.  Payment plans may be 
arranged for multiple-use reservations (with payment in advance for monthly use). 
 
Refunds 
For activities cancelled by the field user 20 business days or more in advance, field user will be 
refunded 100% of fees paid.  For activities cancelled by the field user 19 – 10 business days in 
advance, field user will be refunded 50% of fees paid.  No refunds for cancellation within 10 
business days of a scheduled activity or after the activity has started/was scheduled to start. 

 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

8 

Deposits 
 
A deposit may be required for field use.  The deposit will be refunded if the group abides by all 
Athletic Field Use and Allocation Policy Rules and Regulations, as well as, all pertinent City 
codes.  The deposit may not be refunded if additional fees are assessed for damages, fines or 
unauthorized/extended field use beyond times listed on the permit. 
 
 

Liability Insurance Requirements 
 
The field users shall be responsible for any and all damage to City/School District premises, 
equipment, and property.  If (after and activity) additional maintenance is required (in excess of 
normal services/time), the applicant will be charged accordingly.  The City of Kerman and 
Kerman Unified are not responsible for accidents, injuries or loss/damage to property of 
individuals/groups using the public fields and facilities.  The applicant will be held responsible 
for all actions, behavior and damages caused by his/her participants/guests/attendees.  All 
applicants requesting use of the athletic fields will be required to provide the City with an 
original Certificate of Insurance providing proof of the following coverage: 

 Public liability and property damage insurance in an amount no less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. 

 The City of Kerman, and the Kerman Recreation and Community Services Department 
must be named as additionally insured. 

 The coverage shall not be canceled or reduced without a minimum of 10 day written 
notice to the City of Kerman 

 The certificate must be submitted to the Office of the Recreation Coordinator, located at 
15101 W. Kearney Blvd., Kerman, a minimum of 10 days prior to the event. 

Field users agree to hold the City of Kerman and the Kerman Unified School District harmless 
and free from all liability of any kind resulting from the use of City and/or School District 
facilities (to include the reimbursement of any legal costs and fees incurred in defense of such 
claims). 

 
 
Restrooms 
 
Some parks have public restrooms which may be utilized.  School facility restrooms are not 
open for public use.  User group will be held responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of the 
restroom facility during the course of their event.  If a user group chooses to use portable 
restrooms, arrangements must be made with the City or School District.  User groups must 
contact the City of Kerman at least one week prior to the event for location approval.  In 
addition, user groups must arrange for and pay all fees directly with the restroom vendor. 
 
 

Lights 
 
Lights are available at some athletic fields.  A light key deposit of $50 (Kerckhoff Park only) will 
be required for each key issued.  No more than three light keys will be issued to an individual 
organization or person and keys may not be duplicated by organizations.  One time field users 
are required to pay light fees at the time of reservation.  Allocated groups will be billed for light  

9 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

usage.  Field use after sunset may not occur on an unlit field. Reservations for lit fields  
must be for a minimum of one (1) hour.  When completing your application, please list your 
start and end time.  Do not list “dusk” or “dark”.  The time of rise and set phenomena cannot 
be precisely computed, because, in practice, the actual times depend on unpredictable 
atmospheric conditions that affect the amount of refraction at the horizon.  Scheduled times are 
based on an average of sunsets in order to ensure public safety.  Please refer to the Light 
Schedule listed below: 
 

Reservation Date Estimated Time of Sunset 
January  5:00 pm 
February  5:30 pm 

March  6:30 pm 
April 7:00 pm 
May 7:30 pm 
June 7:30 pm 
July 8:00 pm 

August 7:30 pm 
September 7:00 pm 

October 6:00 pm 
November 5:30 pm 
December 5:00 pm 

 
 

Field Rules & Regulations 
 
In addition to a City of Kerman Field Use Permit and/or a School District Athletic Field Use form 
(KUSD Facilities), a signed copy of the Athletic Field Use Rules and Regulations Form is 
required.  Applicants are required to abide by specific rules and City Codes.  Failure to comply 
may result in a strike, retention of the group’s deposit, and/or cancellation of any 
current or future permits.  These rules include (but are not limited to): 

 Park hours are from sunrise to one-half hour after sunset.  Lighted fields are until 10:30 
pm.  No person shall remain in a City park during non-operating hours.  This schedule 
also applies to any/all school fields allocated by the City. 

 Games and practices are not to start before 8:00 am or extend past 10:00 pm (unless 
otherwise stated).  Organizations are responsible for making necessary 
changes/alterations to their rules and regulations regarding game times to reflect 
park/school hours. 

 Groups of 10 or more individuals wishing to use a field must acquire a permit with the 
City of Kerman or Kerman Unified School District.  A field permit must be available 
during use and presented to any City/School District representative upon request. 

 It is the responsibility of the organization’s president and the individual in charge of the 
permit to enforce the rules and regulations regarding the conduct of the group while on 
permitted facilities.  They are also responsible for ensuring that coaches receive and 
understand that a permit must be on site during field use. 

 
 
 

10 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 Use begins and ends at the times stated on the permit including set-up and clean-up.  
Groups are not allowed on fields prior to the start time on the permit and are required to 
have the fields cleaned and cleared by the ending time indicated on the permit.  Field 
preparation and participant warm-up is allowed within the parameters of field use hours.  
Additional fees will be charged for unauthorized or extended field use beyond the times 
listed on the permit.  Check the permit for specific times to access the fields.  
Unauthorized or extended field use beyond times listed on the permit may result in the 
retention of a portion or all of the deposit and/or result in the cancellation of current use 
and/or prohibition of future use. 

 No subleasing of fields is allowed under any circumstance.  Subleasing of fields will 
result in revocation of all permits. 

 Prohibited in City parks, fields, or school facilities: 
o No alcoholic beverages 
o No smoking, gambling, fireworks/flammable material, narcotics or drugs 
o No sunflower seeds (packaged in shell) or gum 
o No portable barbeques utilizing charcoal, briquettes or a similar type heat source 

parked on a grass surface. 
 No tarps or material which may damage the grass may be placed on the turf.  Any turf 

coverings used must be made of a breathable material. 

 No tarps may be placed on fencing. 
 Parking is allowed only in designated areas.  No vehicles are allowed on City or School 

District fields or property (other than parking lots) without written permission noted on 
the permit by the City or School District.  User groups must inform their participants and 
spectators to park in facility parking lots and public parking areas.  It is the user group’s 
responsibility to alleviate traffic and parking issues. 

 Selling food or other items is not allowed without City approval and must be noted on 
the permit. 

 Amplified sound is not allowed on any field without City approval and must be noted on 
the permit.  Use of artificial noisemakers, horns, rattles, bells, or whistles by spectators 
are not allowed.  User groups must abide by the City’s sound ordinance (Municipal Code 
Chapter 12, Section 32.310). 

 Banners may not be posted without City approval (must be noted on the permit). 
 Balls and other equipment thrown, batted, kicked, or otherwise landing on private 

property must not be retrieved without the property owner’s permission.  Climbing walls 
or entering gates to access private property is prohibited. 

 Property boundary walls and fences are not to be used as backstops at any time. 
 Portable goals and/or markers are allowed but must be removed daily. 
 Each user group is responsible for picking up trash and debris and depositing it into the 

proper trash bins at the conclusion of games and practices.  Adjoining areas must also 
be clear of trash. 

 Please leave school and park areas immediately after games and practices safely and 
quietly, especially after late games.  For the benefit of the community, please practice 
being good neighbors in residential neighborhoods. 

 Groups may not play on fields that have been closed due to wet field conditions.   
 Practice and games must be suspended in event of thunder and/or lightning is observed 

or heard. 

 Misuse of a public park field or the failure to follow established procedures, rules and 
regulations by any group or individual of a group is cause for denial of future 
applications. 

 
11 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 Unauthorized use of City property for profit is illegal. 
 No group or individual is permitted to alter a field in any way (i.e. remove or change 

pitching rubbers, bases, goals, etc.) without written approval from the City of Kerman 
Recreation and Community Services Department or Kerman Unified School District. 

 No group or individual is permitted to maintain a storage unit (or similar object on or 
around a field) without written approval from the City of Kerman Recreation and 
Community Services Department or Kerman Unified School District. 

 
Conditions of Use 

 Tournament, practice and league game dates need to be specified when making field 
reservations. 

 All leagues must make photocopies of their facility permit to be carried by each coach or 
manager.  They must show it upon request of any designated City/School District 
official. 

 The Recreation and Community Services Department must be notified immediately if a 
field(s) reserved by your group is no longer needed or if there is a change in your 
playing schedule. 

 
Turf Preservation 
Cooperation is needed for the preservation of the turf on City and school fields by following 
these guidelines: 

 Field use, especially practices, should be conducted in such a way that the action takes 
place on different sections of turf, thus reducing excessive turf damage in one area.  
Rotate use of areas, and when possible, stay off fringe or bare areas to limit erosion and 
further damage. 

 Replace turf divots at end of each day to help re-root grass. 
 No tarps or material which may damage the grass may be placed on the turf.  Any turf 

coverings used must be made of a breathable material. 
 Do not use fields during or after a heavy rain, or when wet or muddy (see inclement 

weather policy). 
 Soccer practices are not to be held on the infield area of a softball or baseball diamond. 
 Remove all equipment at the conclusion of each day. 
 Do not overcrowd fields by scheduling multiple games in areas reserved.  Allow a 

distance between fields for safe passage of spectators and participants. 
 Report hazards to the Kerman Public Works Department at 559-846-9324. 
 Report immediate emergencies (broken water lines, gushing sprinkler heads, etc.) to 

Public Works.  When calling, be prepared to fully identify yourself, your location 
(park/school), and the specific nature of the emergency so that staff can bring the 
appropriate repair equipment. 

 Do not drive or park cars, motorcycles, or other motorized vehicles on turf areas. 
 
Athletic Field Lining/Marking 

 Lining of City or School District fields is prohibited without permit. 
 Burning lines on City or School District fields is prohibited. 
 Any user failing to comply with established guidelines and notification requests are 

subject to pay for all damages occurring to the facility including termination of field use 
permit. 
 
 

 
12 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Field Modifications 

 Requests to modify or improve any City field shall be submitted for review to the City of 
Kerman Recreation and Community Services Department for consideration. 

 No permanent structures or equipment shall be erected on City of School District fields 
or facilities unless approved by the City and the School District and is dedicated for 
community use.  A request to modify or improve a site does not constitute approval.  
Approval will be given according to City and/or School District policy.  Approval will be 
provided in the form of a written document and will outline the scope of the 
modifications as approved. 

 Any violation of this policy shall result in the immediate revocation of any current and/or 
future allocations. 

 
Inclement Weather Policy 
City athletic fields have been designed and are maintained for the enjoyment and use of 
Kerman residents.  The purpose of this policy is to guide the use of City athletic fields, to 
prevent injuries and damage to the playing surface brought upon by inclement weather and/or 
unsafe playing conditions.  An effective field maintenance program is essential for safe, quality 
fields and sport complexes.  User groups are asked to help us by accepting and adhering to  
these rules.  Groups who use the City athletic facilities are expected to assist in protecting their 
participants and fields during periods of rain or inclement weather. 
 
Policy 
The City of Kerman reserves the right to cancel or suspend field use permits when field 
conditions could result in injury to players or cause damage to the fields.  Permits may also be 
cancelled when the health and safety of participants are threatened due to impending 
conditions, including but not limited to, heavy rains, smog alerts or pesticide application. 
 
Procedure 
During inclement weather, the City’s maintenance staff will assess the playability of all city 
owned and joint-use school district fields to determine if use will occur.  The Director or 
designated representative shall have the authority to close any/all fields within the City of 
Kerman. 
 
Criteria for Establishing Field Playability 
The following information is the City policy regarding the use of fields in wet condition.  These 
policies and procedures apply to all sports and activities conducted on a grass field, turf area, or 
infield: 
 
 Baseball and Softball In-Fields – Brick Dust 
 Infields will be deemed unsafe and unplayable when any of the following conditions are 

present: 

 There is standing water within the base paths 
 Your feet slip as you walk through the infield 
 The depth of your footprint is greater than one half inch 
 Any of the above conditions are present within the pitching area 

 
Soccer, Utility, Baseball and Softball Outfields – Turf 
Outfields and turf area will be deemed unsafe and unplayable when any of the following 
conditions are present: 
 

13 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 There is standing water within the majority of a single playing position (playing 
positions will be determined based on the user group) 

 Your feet suction to the ground as you walk within the majority of a single playing 
position 

 Your footprints fill with water in the majority of a single playing position 

 The depth of your footprint is greater than one inch in the majority of a single 
playing position 

 Grass can be easily dislodged from the fields during play 
 
The following procedures are to be followed regarding the use of fields when there has been 
rain, over-watering, or other serious weather conditions: 

 If it has rained within the preceding 24 hours, groups scheduled to use public fields 
must call the Recreation and Community Services Department at 559-846-4809.  City 
personnel will make determination of field conditions/closures, and the decisions are not 
negotiable. 

 The City may declare a field subject to “re-inspect”.  Re-inspect field should be 
evaluated by the user group at practice/game time for playability.  The user group must 
employ the playability criteria used by City staff. 

 User groups are expected to make educated, responsible decisions regarding field 
condition playability.  The groups should employ the playability criteria used by City staff 
and take into consideration the current and future quality of the turf. 

 Groups witnessing misuse of fields by other scheduled or unscheduled users are advised 
to contact the Kerman Police Department at 559-846-8800 or the Kerman Recreation 
and Community Services Recreation Coordinator at 559-846-4809 (during regular 
working hours only). 

 Abuse/use during wet conditions shall result in a minimum $50.00 fine* upon the first 
occurrence and a minimum $100.00 fine* for the second infraction.  A third infraction in 
a calendar year will result in the loss of all field rental/allocation privileges.  It is user 
group’s responsibility to ensure that all coaches/parents understand and enforce this 
policy (*Fine may be higher if cost of repairs exceed minimum fine amount). 

 FAILURE TO FOLLOW THE GUIDELINES OF THIS POLICY WILL RESULT IN 
CANCELLATION OF EXISTING PERMIT(S) AND LOSS OF RENTAL/ALLOCATION 
PRIVILEDGES.  NOTE: FIELDS WILL BE INSPECTED BY CITY STAFF FOR 
MISUSE DURING INCLEMENT WEATHER. 

 
 
Maintenance Issues 
 
Field Closures 
An annual rest and renovation program is scheduled at all sites to maintain field sustainability.  
The City makes every effort to accommodate groups and organizations, however, the health 
and safety of the user and the condition and playability of the fields takes precedence.  As a 
result, the City may close fields, deny use of a field, and/or alternate sites for athletic use.  
Closures are kept to a minimum when fields are in playable condition. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

14 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Permit Cancellation 
 
The City of Kerman Recreation and Community Services Department reserves the right to 
cancel any reservations (permits) for school or city field use for any of the following reasons: 

 
 It conflicts with any city sponsored league, program, activity or event 
 Maintenance needs/issues 

 Overuse of a field 
 Unsafe conditions 
 

In these cases, all attempts will be made to provide advance notice and to schedule an 
alternate location.  In the event of an emergency, when only short or no notice can be 
afforded, groups must cooperate with the cancellation so as not to risk loss of rental/allocation 
privileges.  If there are no alternate fields the City is not obligated to provide an alternate 
field(s). 
 

 
Notice of Non-Use of Fields 
 
When permits are issued, a specific field(s) is reserved for the user, to the exclusion of others.  
Groups may not assign their scheduled time to other groups.  Any such action shall result in the  
loss of rental/allocation privileges.  Recognizing this exclusivity, groups should only reserve the 
fields they intend to use.  Field users must notify the City to report any reserved time that can 
be released for general public use. 
 

 
Policy for Permitted Use of Athletic Fields Violations 
 
The City utilizes a three-strikes policy for violations of Field Allocation Policy: 
First Offense: Written warning to the user group/individual and restitution for 

damages/costs if applicable. 
Second Offense: Written notice of three day suspension and restitution for damages/costs 

if applicable. 
Third Offense: Written notice of termination of any existing permits, loss of future 

rental/allocation privileges and restitution for damages/costs if applicable. 
 

 
Other Information 
 
Tent and Canopy Requirements 
Article 32 of the State Fire Code requires that a permit be obtained for the rental and 
installation of: 

 Tents over 200 sq ft in size 
 Canopies over 400 sq ft in size 
 When more than one tent or canopy is installed in the same location (adjacent to each 

other), the total square footage must be computed to determine the need for a permit. 
 
 
 

15 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

The code was established to ensure fabrics are of a non-flammable material, units are properly 
installed and anchored to the ground, and all exits are clearly marked and readily accessible in 
the event of an emergency.  The Fresno Fire Department is the governing body for the City of 
Kerman.   
 
Concessions 
The City of Kerman Recreation and Community Services Department reserves the right to 
operate concession stands for tournaments/events and retain all proceeds.  Field users and/or 
other vendors are prohibited from operation concessions except by special permit. 
 
Snack Bar and Barbeque Use 
All organizations that wish to utilize a snack bar and/or barbeque must receive City approval 
and have permission noted on their field use permit.  Portable barbeques that require charcoal, 
briquettes or a similar type heat source are prohibited from use on grass areas in city parks.  
Propane or similar type gas canister barbeques are allowed in developed, passive areas of city 
parks, with the following exceptions: 

 Within 100 ft of undeveloped or brush areas 
 Within 50 ft of residential properties 
 On or within 10 ft of any walkways or travel ways 

 Within public right-of-way 
 On or within 25 ft of any fields, courts or other facilities designated for competitive 

sports 
 Within 50 ft of children play areas, except where City-provided barbeques are located 

 Within 20 ft of any tree trunk 
 Within 10 ft of any tree branch/foliage that is less than 10 ft from the ground 

 
Vendors/Concessions 
User groups operating concessions are considered first party vendors.  A business license is 
NOT required for first party vendors; however food sales must meet Fresno County Health 
Department codes and requirements.  Insurance requirements are met as a condition of field 
use.  First party vendors must receive City approval for concession operations and have 
permission noted on their field use permit. 

 
Outside companies (other than the user groups) are considered second party vendors.  Second 
party vendors are obligated to pay the City of Kerman a $25 vendor fee for each event they are 
approved to participate in.  Second party vendors must have a City of Kerman Business License 
and are required to furnish a certificate of Commercial General Liability insurance with coverage 
no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  “Product Liability” coverage should be included and 
the City of Kerman must be listed as “Additionally Insured”.  All Second Party Vendors food 
preparations and sales have to meet Fresno County Health Department codes and 
requirements.  Vendor information, business license, and certificate of insurance must be 
submitted to the City of Kerman Recreation and Community Services Department no later than 
two weeks prior to the event. 
 
Additional Supervision 
The City of Kerman may require a field user to provide police/security protection when deemed 
necessary.  Additional park personnel will be assigned if required by the City.  Any resulting 
expenses or costs as a result will be billed to the field user. 
 
 

16 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Banners/Signage/Advertising 
Organizations should obtain appropriate approval and/or permit(s) to meet the established 
standards required by the City of Kerman sign ordinance policy prior to any public display or  
advertising on City property.  Signboards or banners displayed in public parks should not be 
located where they could potentially create a negative visual impact.  They should neither 
distract nor interfere with the overall park experience for the general public.  Signs or banners 
must be confined and orientated to the area of use by the organization.  Banners are not 
allowed to be displayed at school fields.  Additional requirements include: 

 No permanent structure can be erected in a park for the purpose of supporting 
advertising signboards or banners 

 Banners must be vinyl and may not exceed 4 ft width by 6 ft length. Temporary paper 
banners are acceptable for single day usage. 

 Banners placed on ball fields are restricted to the outfield fence and must face the inside 
of the ball field.  Banners should be spaced evenly across the fence to create a uniform 
pattern. 

 Banners may be installed on an outfield fence that is a maximum of 8 ft high. 
 The banners should be centered between posts with the bottom of the banner no 

greater than 2 ft above the ground.  For Baseball/Softball outfield fencing, banners 
cannot be placed within a 40 foot area of centerfield visible from home plate. 

 The bottom of a banner must be located a minimum of 8 inches off the ground and are 
not to extend over the top rail. 

 Banners should be made with flaps to allow wing to pass through. 
 Banners must be tied with zip ties, unless banners are to be removed at the end of each 

day. 

 Messages and graphics must be professional. 
 Banners and signage must be neat, cleaned and maintained throughout the season. 
 No inappropriate language or messages may be displayed. 
 Banners, tarps or similar materials may not be hung from any bleachers, dugouts or 

backstops (one-day signage and/or banners placed on dugout and/or sideline fencing is 
permissible). 

 Banners may be displayed only during the dates of use indicated on the field use permit 
(and must be removed on the final day listed on the permit). 

 It is the sole responsibility of the group to put up and take down all signage/banners. 

 City staff may require banners to be removed if torn, in bad condition and/or creates an 
unacceptable appearance. 

 Damage to public property, fences, etc… caused by banner installation, display or 
removal is the sole responsibility of the organization. 

 Breach of contract may limit the number of signs/banners allowed to be displayed, or 
may prohibit the display of any signage/banners for the upcoming season. 

 The City of Kerman reserves the right to make additional stipulations (not mentioned in 
the sign/banner policy) for the betterment of the City. 

 
Traffic and Parking 
Field users must instruct participants and spectators to park in facility parking lots and public 
parking areas.  Field users should post directional signs, if needed, to guide participants and 
spectators to appropriate parking areas.  If traffic/parking is an issue, the user 
group/organization must provide volunteers to direct participants and spectators to designated 
parking areas.  It is the user’s responsibility to alleviate parking and traffic issues.  It is the field 
user’s responsibility to notify participants and spectators of designated no parking zones.   
 

17 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Violators may be ticketed.  No vehicles are allowed on City or School District fields or property 
(other than parking lots) without written permission noted on the permit issued by the City of 
Kerman. 

 
 

Appeals Process 
 
The Recreation and Community Services Director will make interpretation of language in this 
Field Use and Allocation Policy.  An appeal to the Director’s decision must be submitted in 
writing with justification within 10 working days from the decision.  Field users or potential field 
users may appeal any section of this policy in writing within 10 days of the notice of violation to 
the Recreation and Community Services Department at: 
 

City of Kerman 
Recreation and Community Services Department 

720 S. Eighth Street 
Kerman, CA 93630 

 
All appeal letters will be forwarded to the Director for review.  After the Director’s decision has 
been made, a written appeal may be directed to the Recreation and Community Services 
Commission. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

18 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPLICATION FORMS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
BANNER PERMIT REQUEST FORM 

(Please type or print one form per permit) 
 

Organization             
 
Proposed Field Site       # of Banners     Size      
 
Proposed Banner Location(s)            
 
Method of Installation             
 
Banner Color         Print Color        
 
Reason for Posting Banners             
 
Banners will be posted on     and removed on or before     
     (Date)           (Date) 
Applicants Name              
 
Daytime Phone  ( )   E-Mail Address        
 
Conditions of Approval if different from request         
 
              
 
              
 
Approved by      Date     Permit Number    
     (City Representative) 
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Use this area to draw a diagram of banner location 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

TOURNAMENT ORIENTATION CHECKLIST 
 

The following information must be discussed prior to each proposed tournament. 

 
 

              

Tournament Director   Tournament Location(s)   Tournament Date(s) 
 

1) PROCESSING INSTRUCTIONS 
( ) Fill out Permit Request 

( ) Verify paperwork has been received and permits issued 

( ) Proof of Insurance 
( ) Pay for permits 

( ) Special Event Permit 
( ) Additional Charges for Unauthorized or Extended Use 

 
2) TRASH 

( ) Explanation of duties and responsibilities 

( ) Site & Program Specific Information 
( ) Additional Dumpster Necessary 

( ) All Trash Bags Picked Up and Emptied into Dumpster 
 

3) TOURNAMENT SCHEDULE 

( ) Hours of tournament vs. Permitted field times (site specifics) 
( ) Submit Tournament Schedule 

 
4) FACILITIES 

( )  Relationship between City, School District and User Group 

( ) Restrooms and Water fountains (For General Maintenance Concerns Call 559-846-9328) 
( ) Snack Bar – BBQ and Open Flame 

( ) Portable Goals/Restrooms – Placement 
( ) Parking areas – Parking Monitors to direct participants and spectators to designated 

parking areas 
( ) Contact PD 

( ) Supply/Storage Areas 

( ) Bulletin boards and information sources 
( ) No Field Modifications – 1 game per field 

( ) Lining Fields – Need Permit (Mow schedule) 
( ) PA System – What type? 

( ) Adverse Field Condition Hotline 

( ) Volunteers – Trespassing stations around facility 
 

5) POLICIES AND PROCEEDURES 
( ) Contact surrounding neighbors 

( ) Review Rules and Regulations pertaining to Field Use 
( ) Safety precautions and reporting of accidents 

( ) Requisitioning supplies and equipment 

( ) Field Supervisiors/Coordinators – Contact Information 
( ) Review, sign policy and provide copy for tournament director(s) 

 
 

              

Tournament Director’s Signature  Recreation Coordinator’s Signature  Date 
 

 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Application and Agreement Request for Use of 
City of Kerman Athletic Fields/Facilities 

 
 

The City of Kerman will be the responsible agency for scheduling and permitting all City owned fields and athletic 
facilities.  Submission of an Application and Agreement Request does not constitute approval.  Approval is given 
according to the allocation policy, field/facility availability, after fees are paid and when a permit is issued.  The City 
has exclusive discretion in decisions on scheduling of City Active Use Areas and such decision shall be final. 

 
City of Kerman Recreation & Community Services Department 

750 S. Eighth Street, Kerman, CA 93630 
Phone 559-846-8643 FAX 559-846-4802 

www.cityofkerman.net 
 

The contact information you provide the City of Kerman on these field request forms could be made public if 
requested.  The information on these forms should be contact information you would like City staff to provide 
prospective players wishing to register for your organization.  This information will be considered public. 
 
Organization             
 
Name of Applicant         Title      
 
Address          City & Zip      
 
Contact Phone Number (      )           
 
E-Mail Address             
 
Field/Facility Requested            
 
Description of Activity            
 
Estimated Attendance        Open to the Public  Yes     No  
 
Day of Week   Dates   Start Time    End Time 
       (Include Set-up) 
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
I verify that the information on this Application and Agreement Request for Use of Athletic Fields forms is correct as 
defined in the Athletic Field Use and Allocation Policy and understand the possible consequences if the information is 
incorrect or misleading within the acceptable boundaries as described in the allocation policy.  I have read the 
Application and Agreement and agree to all provisions listed on this Application, the Athletic Field Use & Allocation 
Policy, Rules and Regulations and disclaimers applied to issued permits and will communicate this information to our 
coaches and participants. 
 
             
Signature of Applicant     Signature of Organization/ League President 
 
             
Date       Date  
 

*************************************   OFFICE USE ONLY   ************************************* 
 ORGANIZATION PRIORITY  1  2  3  4  5    PERMIT NUMBER       
 

 

 

http://www.cityofkerman.net/


City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

FIELD USER INFORMATION SHEET 
Spring Sport (March – July) or Fall Sport (August – December) 

 
 

Organization              
 
Sport         Season         
 
Total Program Registrations      Total Kerman Residents       
 
The contact information you provide the City of Kerman on these field request forms could be made public if 
requested.  The information written on these forms should be contact information you would like City staff to provide 
prospective players wishing to register for your organization.  This information will be considered public. 

 

Field Allocation Representative   Organization President 
 
Name         Name         
 
Address        Address        
 
City & Zip        City & Zip        
 
Contact Phone #  ( )    Contact Phone #  ( )    
 
E-Mail Address        E-Mail Address        
 

YOUR ORGANIZATION’S IMPORTANT DATES 
 

Practice Begins The Week Of       Opening Day       
 
League Games Begin The Week Of       and End       
 
Playoffs Begin The Week Of       and End       
 
List Any Practice or Game Restrictions            
 
List Any Special Events (Picture Day, Tournaments, Trainings, etc.)         
 
I verify that the information on this form is correct as defined in the Athletic Field Use and Allocation Policy and 
understand the possible consequences if the information is incorrect or misleading within the acceptable boundaries 
as described in the allocation policy. 
 
 
              
Signature of Organization/League President   Signature of Field Allocation Representative 
 
              
Date       Date 
 
 
 
 

*************************************   OFFICE USE ONLY   ************************************* 

 ORGANIZATION PRIORITY  1  2  3  4  5    PERMIT NUMBER      
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

ATHLETIC FIELD USE RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

1. Groups of 10 or more individuals wishing to use a field must acquire a permit with the City of 

Kerman.  A field permit must be available during use and presented to any City of School District 
representative upon request. 

 

2. It is the responsibility of the person in charge identified on the permit to enforce the rules and 
regulations regarding the conduct of the group while on permitted facilities.  These rules 
include but are not limited to: 

  

 Park hours are from sunrise to one-half hour after sunset.  Lighted fields are until 10:30 pm.  No 

person shall remain in a City park during non-operating hours.  This schedule also applies to 

any/all school fields allocated by the City. 
 Games and practices are not to start before 8:00 am or extend past 10:00 pm (unless otherwise 

stated).  Organizations are responsible for making necessary changes/alterations to their rules 

and regulations regarding game times to reflect park/school hours. 
 It is the responsibility of the organization’s president and the individual in charge of the permit to 

enforce the rules and regulations regarding the conduct of the group while on permitted facilities.  

They are also responsible for ensuring that coaches receive and understand that a permit must 
be on site during field use. 

 Use begins and ends at the times stated on the permit including set-up and clean-up.  Groups 

are not allowed on fields prior to the start time on the permit and are required to have the fields 

cleaned and cleared by the ending time indicated on the permit.  Field preparation and 
participant warm-up is allowed within the parameters of field use hours.  Additional fees will be 

charged for unauthorized or extended field use beyond the times listed on the permit.  Check the 
permit for specific times to access the fields.  Unauthorized or extended field use beyond times 

listed on the permit may result in the retention of a portion or all of the deposit and/or result in 

the cancellation of current use and/or prohibition of future use. 
 No subleasing of fields is allowed under any circumstance.  Subleasing of fields will result in 

revocation of all permits. 
 Prohibited in City parks, fields, or school facilities: 

o No alcoholic beverages 
o No smoking, gambling, fireworks/flammable material, narcotics or drugs 

o No sunflower seeds or gum 
o No portable barbeques utilizing charcoal, briquettes or a similar type heat source 

 No tarps or material which may damage the grass may be placed on the turf.  Any turf coverings 

used must be made of a breathable material. 

 No tarps may be placed on fencing. 

 Parking is allowed only in designated areas.  No vehicles are allowed on City or School District 

fields or property (other than parking lots) without written permission noted on the permit by the 
City.  User groups must inform their participants and spectators to park in facility parking lots and 

public parking areas.  It is the user’s responsibility to alleviate traffic and parking issues. 
 Selling food or other items is not allowed without City approval and must be noted on the permit. 

 Amplified sound is not allowed on any field without City approval and must be noted on the 

permit.  Use of artificial noisemakers, horns, rattles, bells, or whistles by spectators are not 

allowed.  User groups must abide by the City’s sound ordinance (Municipal Code Chapter 12, 

Section 32.310). 
 Banners may not be posted without City approval (must be noted on the permit). 

 Balls and other equipment thrown, batted, kicked, or otherwise landing on private property must 

not be retrieved without the property owner’s permission.  Climbing walls or entering gates to 

access private property is prohibited. 
 Property boundary walls and fences are not to be used as backstops at any time. 

 
 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

 Portable goals and/or markers are allowed but must be removed daily. 

 Each user group is responsible for picking up trash and debris and depositing it into the proper 

trash bins at the conclusion of games and practices.  Adjoining areas must also be clear of trash. 

 Please leave school and park areas immediately after games and practices safely and quietly, 

especially after late games.  For the benefit of the community, please practice being good 
neighbors in residential neighborhoods. 

 Practice and games must be suspended in event thunder and/or lightning is observed or heard. 

 Misuse of a public park field or the failure to follow established procedures, rules and regulations 

by any group or individual of a group is cause for denial of future applications. 
 Animals (excluding guide dogs) are not allowed in City Parks or on school property. 

 Unauthorized use of City property for profit is illegal. 

 No group or individual is permitted to alter a field in any way (i.e. remove or change pitching 

rubbers, bases, goals, etc.) without written approval from the City of Kerman Recreation and 

Community Services Department. 
 No group or individual is permitted to maintain a storage unit (or similar object on or around a 

field without written approval from the City. 

 

3. Wet Field Policy: Groups may not play on fields that have been closed due to wet field 
conditions.   

 
4. Non-adherence to any of these rules or City ordinance may result in the retention of a portion or 

all of the deposit and/or result in the cancellation of current and/or prohibition of future use. 

 
 

 

Recreation & Community 

Services Department 

(559) 846-8643 

Field Maintenance 

Assistance (On-Call) 

(559) 351-8203 

Police Department 

(559) 846-8800 

Emergencies Only 

911 

 

Applicant Name:            

   (Print)       (Title) 
 

              
   (Signature)      (Date) 

 

Approved by 
City Representative:            

   (Signature)      (Date) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

Hold Harmless and Indemnity Agreement 
 

I, FIELD/FACILITY USER, have express the desire to utilize an athletic field or athletic facility 
owned by the City of Kerman as stated on this application. 
 
We, the City of Kerman, agree to provide access to a field or facility to meet the use requested 
on this application as availability and priority of use allow.  Submission of an Application and 
Agreement request does not constitute approval.  Approval is given according to the allocation 
policy, field/facility availability, after fees are paid and when a permit is issued. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants herein contained, performed and 
to be performed, the parties here to agree as follows: 
 

1. CITY shall schedule access to and make all provisions for FIELD/FACILITY USER to enter 
and use permitted public facility as required to fulfill the purpose of the Agreement. 

 
2. Designate in writing an Administering Officer to a as the CITY representative with 

respect to the use of the facility contemplated hereunder.  Such person shall have 
complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information and interpret and define 
the CITY requirements in connection with said use. 

 
3. FIELD/FACILITY USER hereby agrees to defend at his own cost and to indemnify and 

hold harmless the CITY and KERMAN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT – (KUSD), its elected 
and appointed boards, officers, agents and employees from and against any and all 
liability, damages, costs, losses, claims and expenses, howsoever caused, resulting 
directly or indirectly from or connected with the performance of the Agreement 
(including but not limited to such liability, costs, damage, loss, claim or expense, arising 
from the death or injury to an agent, member, invitee, or employee of FIELD/FACILITY 
USER or of CITY and KUSD) except where such liability, damages, costs, losses, claims 
or expenses are caused solely by the negligent or wrongful acts of CITY and KUSD or 
any of its agents or employees other than negligent omission or commissions of CITY 
and KUSD its agents or employees, in connection with the general supervision or 
direction of the use of said facility.  FIELD/FACILITY USER, in addition to the foregoing, 
specifically shall indemnify and save harmless CITY and KUSD, any and all of CITY 
officers, agents, and employees, from any liability by reason of California safe place 
statutes or similar provisions pertaining to the use of said public facility or safety of 
materials or equipment supplied by CITY and KUSD or others at the direction of CITY 
and KUSD and used in the performance of the purposed hereunder. Initial    

 
4. It is further understood and agreed that FIELD/FACILITY USER shall be acting at all 

times as an independent contractor herein and not as an employee of CITY or KUSD.  
FIELD/FACILITY USER shall secure at his expense, and responsible for any and all 
payment of Income Tax, Social Security, State Disability Insurance Compensation, 
Unemployment Compensation and other payroll deductions for FIELD/FACILITY USER 
and his officers, agents and employees and all business licenses, if any, in connection 
with the use of said facility.  Initial    

 
 

 
 
 



City of Kerman – Recreation & Community Services Department 
   

ATHLETIC FIELD USE AND ALLOCATION POLICY 

5. FIELD/FACILITY USER shall secure and maintain throughout the period of use 
contemplated under this Agreement general liability insurance with policy limits of not 
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, with CITY and KUSD named as additionally insured 
by endorsement.  Such policy or policies of insurance shall further provide that said 
policies of FIELD/FACILITY USER shall be primary over any insurance held by CITY and 
KUSD that may be applicable.  Initial       

 
6. This agreement, the exhibits hereto and any special provisions to which the Agreement 

is subject may only be altered, amended or rescinded by a duly executed written 
Agreement. 

 
Executed in the City of Kerman, County of Fresno, State of California and subject to laws 
thereof. 
 

 
Applicant Name:            
   (Print)       (Title) 

 
              

   (Signature)      (Date) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	9-2-21 Recreation Commission Agenda
	8-5-21 Recreation Commission Minutes
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	REGULAR RECREATION COMMISSION MEETING
	Meeting called to order by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia at 12:03 p.m.

	Roll Call

	9-2-21 WSY App
	WSY App_Redacted
	9-2-21 Creation of Facility Use Policy
	Kerman Policy



